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Blad, Hannah

From: Blad, Hannah
Sent: Thursday, October 31, 2019 1:36 PM
To: contact@schcam.org
Cc: Kelly, Clint; SBranigin (SBranigin@indot.IN.gov); Miller, Shaun (INDOT); Costa, Chad; 

Quigg, Gary; Fortson, William; WTharp1 (WTharp1@dnr.IN.gov); jcarr 
(JCarr@dnr.IN.gov)

Subject:  FHWA Project: Des. No. 1800210; SR 56 Intersection Improvement Project, Scott 
County, Indiana

Attachments: SR 56 Intersection Improvement_Des1800210_Early Coordination_2019-10-10.pdf

The Indiana Department of Transportation (INDOT), with funding from the Federal Highway Administration, proposes to
proceed with an intersection improvement project (Des. No. 1800210).

Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act requires federal agencies to take into account the effects of their
undertakings on historic properties. The following agencies/individuals are being invited to become consulting parties:

State Historic Preservation Officer, River Hills Economic Development District, Scott County Commissioners, Scott County
Highway Department, Scott County Historian, Scott County Historical Society, Indiana Landmarks � Southern Regional
Office, Preservation Alliance, Inc., Scott County Heritage Center and Museum, Delaware Tribe of Indians, Oklahoma,
Eastern Shawnee Tribe of Oklahoma, Miami Tribe of Oklahoma, Peoria Tribe of Indians of Oklahoma, Pokagon Band of
Potawatomi Indians

This letter is part of the early coordination phase of the environmental review process requesting comments associated
with this project. We are requesting comments from your area of expertise regarding any possible environmental effects
associated with this project. Please use the above Des. Number and project description in your reply and your comments
will be incorporated into the formal environmental study.

Please review the attached Early Coordination Letter, which is also located in IN SCOPE at
http://erms.indot.in.gov/Section106Documents/ (the Des. No. is the most efficient search term, once in IN SCOPE), and
respond with your comments on any historic resource impacts incurred as a result of this project so that an
environmental report can be completed. We also welcome your related opinions and other input to be considered in
the preparation of the environmental document. If a hard copy of the materials is needed, please respond to this email
with your request within seven (7) days.

Consulting parties have thirty (30) calendar days from receipt of this information to review and provide comments. If we
do not receive a response from an invited consulting party within the time allotted, the project will proceed consistent
with the proposed design.

Tribal contacts may contact Shaun Miller at smiller@indot.in.gov or 317 233 6795 or Michelle Allen at FHWA at
michelle.allen@dot.gov or 317 226 7344.

Thank you in advance for your input,
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Blad, Hannah

From: sbear@hsonline.net
Sent: Sunday, November 3, 2019 11:57 PM
To: Blad, Hannah

Hannah, I have received the letter ref: S.R.56 and Boatman road in Scott County. The letter requests me two reply if I
want to be a consulting party for this project. Yes, I do want to be a consulting party as a County Commissioner I feel it
is important to be kept aware of any information about a round a bout at this location. Thank you very much, Scott
County Commissioner District #3, John C.
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Hannah Blad

From: Hannah Blad
Sent: Tuesday, May 5, 2020 9:03 AM
To: sbear@hsonline.net; WTharp1 (WTharp1@dnr.IN.gov); jcarr (JCarr@dnr.IN.gov)
Cc: Kelly, Clinton; SBranigin (SBranigin@indot.IN.gov); Miller, Shaun (INDOT); Chad Costa; Gary Quigg; 

Dye, David (DDYE@indot.IN.gov); Shawn Strange; Tim Suber; Andrew Martin (amartin@crai-ky.com); 
Coon, Matthew

Subject: FHWA Project: Des. No. 1800210; SR 56 Intersection Improvement Project, Scott County, Indiana
Attachments: SR 56 Intersection Improvement_Des1800210_HPR and Archaeology Report Distribution Letter_

2020-05-05.pdf

The Indiana Department of Transportation (INDOT), with funding from the Federal Highway Administration, proposes to
proceed with an intersection improvement project (Des. No. 1800210). The Section 106 Early Coordination Letter for this
project was originally distributed on October 10, 2019.

As part of Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act, a Historic Property Report and Archaeology Report
(tribes only) have been prepared and are ready for review and comment by consulting parties.

Please review this documentation located in IN SCOPE at http://erms.indot.in.gov/Section106Documents/ (the Des. No.
is the most efficient search term, once in IN SCOPE), and respond with any comments that you may have. If a hard copy
of the materials is needed, please respond to this email with your request within seven (7) days.

Consulting parties have thirty (30) calendar days from receipt of this information to review and provide comment. Tribal
contacts may contact Shaun Miller at smiller@indot.in.gov or 317 233 6795 or Michelle Allen at FHWA at
michelle.allen@dot.gov or 317 226 7344.

Thank you in advance for your input,

Hannah Blad 
Historian/Section 106 Specialist

3502 Woodview Trace
Suite 150, Indianapolis, IN 46268
317.334.6826 (direct) | 574.248.2121 (mobile)
HBlad@lochgroup.com
http://lochgroup.com

This e mail message is for the sole use of the intended recipient(s), and may contain confidential and privileged information. Any unauthorized review, use, disclosure
or distribution is prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient(s), please contact the sender by reply e mail and destroy all copies of the original message. Thank
you!
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Hannah Blad

From: Miller, Shaun (INDOT) <smiller@indot.IN.gov>
Sent: Tuesday, May 5, 2020 9:21 AM
To: Larry Heady; thpo@estoo.net; Diane Hunter; 'lpappenfort@peoriatribe.com'; 

Matthew.Bussler@pokagonband-nsn.gov; tonya@shawnee-tribe.com
Cc: Kelly, Clint; Hannah Blad
Subject: FW: FHWA Project: Des. No. 1800210; SR 56 Intersection Improvement Project, Scott County, Indiana
Attachments: SR 56 Intersection Improvement_Des1800210_HPR and Archaeology Report Distribution Letter_

2020-05-05.pdf

Dear consulting parties,

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

Shaun Miller
INDOT, Cultural Resources Office
Archaeology Team Lead
(317)233 6795
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100 North Senate Avenue
Room N642
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204

PHONE: (317) 234-5168
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Protecting Historic Properties: A Citizen’s Guide to Section 106 
Review 

Des. No. 1800210 Appendix D: Section 106 D61



Des. No. 1800210 Appendix D: Section 106 D62



Des. No. 1800210 Appendix D: Section 106 D63



Des. No. 1800210 Appendix D: Section 106 D64



Eric Holcomb, Governor
Cameron F. Clark, Director

The DNR mission: Protect, enhance, preserve and wisely use natural, 

through professional leadership, management and education. 

www.DNR.IN.gov 
An Equal Opportunity Employer 

-2739 
Phone 317-232- -232- dhpa@dnr.IN.gov  
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SR 56 Intersection Improvement Project: 
SR 56 and Boatman Road 

Vienna Township, Scott County, Indiana 
Des. No. 1800210 
DHPA No. 24521

Historic Property Report 
May 5, 2020 

Prepared for:
Indiana Department of Transportation 

Federal Highway Administration 

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

I. MANAGEMENT SUMMARY

This report documents the identification and evaluation efforts for properties included in the Area of 
Potential Effects (APE) for the SR 56 Intersection Improvement Project at the intersection of State 
Road (SR) 56 and Boatman Road in Vienna Township, Scott County, Indiana. Above-ground 
resources located within the project APE were identified and evaluated in accordance with Section 
106, National Historic Preservation Act (NHPA) of 1966, as amended, and the regulations 
implementing Section 106 (36 CFR Part 800). 

As a result of the NHPA, as amended, and CFR Part 800, federal agencies are required to take into 
account the impact of federal undertakings upon historic properties in the area of the undertaking. 
Historic properties include buildings, structures, sites, objects, and/or districts that are eligible for or 
listed in the National Register of Historic Places (National Register). As this project is receiving 
funding from the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA), it is subject to a Section 106 review.  

The APE contains no properties listed in the National Register.  

The APE contains no properties that are recommended eligible for listing in the National Register. 
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Contract Publication Series 19-617 

A PHASE IA ARCHAEOLOGICAL RECONNAISSANCE 
SURVEY FOR THE PROPOSED INTERSECTION 

IMPROVEMENT PROJECT AT SR 56 AND SOUTH 
BOATMAN ROAD IN SCOTT COUNTY, INDIANA 

(INDOT DES. NO. 1800210) 

by

Paul D. Bundy, RPA 15111 

Prepared for 

Chad Costa 
Lochmueller Group 

3502 Woodview Trace, Suite 150 
Indianapolis, Indiana 46268 

ccosta@lochgroup.com 

Prepared by 

Cultural Resource Analysts, Inc. 
201 NW 4th Street, Suite 204 

Evansville, Indiana 
Phone: (812) 253-3009 

Fax: (812) 253-3010 
Email: amartin@crai-ky.com 
CRA Project No.: I19L018 

__________________________
Andrew V. Martin, RPA 61710 

Principal Investigator 

, 20

Lead Agency: Indiana Department of Transportation 
INDOT DES No.: 1800210 

Indiana State Museum Accession No.: 71.19.1724 
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ABSTRACT 
On August 22, 2019, Cultural Resource Analysts, Inc., personnel conducted a Phase Ia archaeological 

reconnaissance survey for the proposed intersection improvement project at State Route 56 and South 
Boatman Road in Scott County, Indiana (Indiana Department of Transportation Designation Number 
1800210). The survey was conducted at the request of Lochmueller Group. These areas included 
agricultural fields, commercial properties, and lawns. Survey methods consisted of pedestrian survey 
supplemented with shovel testing, as well as visual inspection of disturbed areas. 

Prior to conducting this survey, an archaeological records review was completed using the Indiana 
Division of Historic Preservation and Archaeology’s State Historic Architectural and Archaeological 
Research Database. The records review revealed that there were nine documented archaeological studies 
within 1.6 km (1.0 mi) of the survey area and one documented archaeological site (12S60). None of the 
documented archaeological studies overlap the current survey area and the single previously documented 
site is located well beyond the current survey area (over 800.00 m [2,625.00 ft] west of the area. Review of 
the structures currently listed on the Historic Landmarks Foundation of Indiana indicated that no structures 
are located within the current survey area; however, two structural resources (143-578-15036 and 143-578-
15033) are located within the vicinity of the survey area. Though these structures are close to the survey 
area, shovel testing within the survey area in the vicinity did not result in cultural materials and these 
resources will not be directly impacted. Additionally, no cemeteries listed in the Indiana Division of 
Historic Preservation and Archaeology’s State Historic Architectural and Archaeological Research 
Database are located within 30.48 m (100.00 ft) of the survey area. 

As a result of the current field reconnaissance, one newly documented archaeological site (12S93) was 
recorded. This site extends outside of the survey area and the National Register of Historic Places or Indiana 
Register of Historic Sites and Structures eligibility in areas beyond the current survey area were not 
investigated and therefore cannot be assessed. However, the portion of this site that falls within the current 
survey area that was investigated demonstrated poor archaeological integrity and is recommended not 
eligible for listing in the National Register of Historic Places or Indiana Register of Historic Sites and 
Structures, and no further archaeological work is recommended within the survey area at Site 12S93. 
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Public Notice 
Des. No. 1800210 

 
The Indiana Department of Transportation (INDOT) is planning to undertake an intersection improvement 
project, funded in part by the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA). The project is located at the 
intersection of SR 56 and Boatman Road in Vienna Township, Scott County, Indiana.  
 
Under the preferred alternative, the proposed project will construct a single lane roundabout offset from the 
existing intersection by approximately 65 feet to the southeast. Electric, water, and telephone lines are likely to 
require relocation, as well as a high-pressure gas main. Outside the roundabout, the proposed typical section 
of both SR 56 and Boatman Road will include two 12-foot wide travel lanes (one in each direction) with 2-foot 
wide paved and 2-foot wide aggregate shoulders. The access between Mount Drive and SR 56 along the east 
leg will be closed. An earthen berm will be constructed across Mount Drive to prevent continued access to and 
from SR 56. In addition, a truck turnaround will be constructed on the south side of Mount Drive. It is 
anticipated that approximately 4.06 acres of permanent right-of-way and approximately 0.2 acre of temporary 
right-of-way will be required. No relocations will be required as part of this project.  
 
The proposed action does not impact properties listed in or eligible for the National Register of Historic Places.   
The INDOT, on behalf of the FHWA, has issued a “No Historic Properties Affected” finding for the project due 
to the fact that no historic properties are present within the Area of Potential Effects (APE). 
 
In accordance with the National Historic Preservation Act, the views of the public are being sought regarding 
the effect of the proposed project on the historic elements as per 36 CFR 800.2(d), 800.3(e) and 800.6(a)(4). 
Pursuant to 36 CFR 800.4(d)(1), the documentation specified in 36 CFR 800.11(d) can be viewed 
electronically by accessing INDOT’s Section 106 document posting website IN SCOPE at 
http://erms.indot.in.gov/Section106Documents. Persons with limited internet access may request project 
information be mailed by contacting Hannah Blad at 574.334.5487, or at hblad@lochgroup.com. This 
documentation serves as the basis for the “No Historic Properties Affected” finding. The views of the public on 
this effect finding are being sought. Please reply with any comments to Hannah Blad, Lochmueller Group, 112 
W. Jefferson Blvd., Suite 500, South Bend, IN 46601, 574.334.5487, hblad@lochgroup.com no later than 
February 26, 2021. 

In accordance with the “Americans with Disabilities Act”, if you have a disability for which INDOT needs to 
provide accessibility to the document(s) such as interpreters or readers, please contact William Fortson at 812-
524-3745 or wfortson@indot.in.gov. 
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Eric Holcomb, Governor

Daniel W. Bortner, Director

 
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

February 5, 2021

Hannah Blad
Historian/Section 106 Specialist
Lochmueller Group
3502 Woodview Trace, Suite 150
Indianapolis, Indiana  46268

Federal Agency:
on behalf of Federal Highway Administration, Indiana Division (

Re: In
the Federal Highway Administration for the proposed SR 56 and Boatman Road--Intersection 
Improvement Project (construction of a roundabout) in Vienna Township, Scott County, Indiana
(Des. No. 1800210; DHPA No. 24521)

Dear Ms. Blad:

Pursuant to Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, as amended (54 U.S.C. § 306108), 36 C.F.R. Part 800,
and (PA) Among the Federal Highway Administration, the Indiana Department of Transportation, 
the Advisory Council on Historic Preservation and the Indiana State Historic Preservation Officer Regarding the Implementation 
of the Federal Aid Highway Program In the State of Indiana the staff of the Indiana Stat

or DNR- ) has reviewed the information dated January 15, 2021 and received the same day.

As previously indicated, for the purposes of the Section 106 review of this particular federal undertaking, we agree with the HPR
that there are no aboveground properties within the APE that are eligible for inclusion in the National Register of Historic Places 
( NRHP ).

Furthermore, in regard to archaeological resources, based on the submitted information and the documentation available to the 
staff of the Indiana SHPO, we have not identified any currently known archaeological resources listed in or eligible for inclusion 
in the NRHP within the proposed project area, and it is our opinion that no further archaeological investigations appear necessary 
at the proposed project area.

January 14, 2021
FHWA for this federal undertaking. 

If any prehistoric or historic archaeological artifacts or human remains are uncovered during construction, demolition, or earthmoving 
activities, state law (Indiana Code 14-21-1-27 and -29) requires that the discovery be reported to the DNR-DHPA within two (2) 
business days.  In that event, please call (317) 232-1646.  Be advised that adherence to Indiana Code 14-21-1-27 and -29 does not 
obviate the need to adhere to applicable federal statutes and regulations, including but not limited to 36 C.F.R. Part 800. 

The Indiana SHPO staff archaeological reviewer for this project is Wade T. Tharp, and the structures reviewer is Chad Slider.  
However, if you have a question about the Section 106 process, please contact initially the INDOT Cultural Resources staff 
members who are assigned to this project.
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Hannah Blad
February 5, 2021
Page 2

In all future correspondence about the SR 56 and Boatman Road Intersection Improvement Project in Vienna Township of Scott
County (Des. No. 1800210), please continue to refer to DHPA No. 24521.

Very truly yours,

Beth K. McCord
Deputy State Historic Preservation Officer

BKM:CWS:cws

emc:  Anuradha Kumar, INDOT
Shaun Miller, INDOT
Susan Branigin, INDOT
Shirley Clark, INDOT
Chad Costa, Lochmueller Group
Hannah Blad, Lochmueller Group
Board of Commissioners of Scott County
Scott County Highway Superintendent
Wade T. Tharp, DNR-DHPA
Chad Slider, DNR-DHPA
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MEMO 

112 West Jefferson Blvd, Suite 500
South Bend, Indiana 46601

PHONE: 574.334.5460

To: Section 106 Consulting Parties

CC: Anu Kumar, Susan Branigin, Shaun Miller, Matt Coon and Clint Kelly (INDOT); Shawn 
Strange (First Group Engineering, Inc.), Will Fortson (INDOT)

From: Hannah Blad, Historian/Section 106 Specialist

Date: January 31, 2022

Subject: Des. No. 1800210
DHPA No. 24521
Section 106 Consultation - Note to File
SR 56 and Boatman Road – Intersection Improvement Project 
Vienna Township, Scott County

A Finding Document of “No Historic Properties Affected” was approved for the above referenced project by the 
Indiana Department of Transportation Department (INDOT) Cultural Resources Office (CRO), on behalf of the 
Federal Highway Administration (FHWA), on January 14, 2021, and distributed to consulting parties on January 
15, 2021. A Public Notice was published in the Scott County Herald on January 27, 2021. No public comments 
were received regarding the effect of the proposed project on the historic elements within the Area of Potential 
Effects (APE). Following the approval of the Section 106 Effects Finding, the progression in design resulted in an
additional amount of right-of-way necessary to be acquired for the project. 

This Note to File has been prepared to inform consulting parties of the change in amount of right-of-way required
for the undertaking. 

Project Modifications:  

Since the distribution of the 800.11(d)/Finding Documentation, the amount of permanent right-way has 
increased from the amount described in the 800.11(d)/Finding Documentation. In the 800.11(d)/Finding 
Documentation, the permanent right-of-way amount was described as 4.06 acres and the temporary right-of-
way amount was described as 0.2 acre. INDOT Seymour District has decided to change the design parameters of 
the project from a 3R to 4R project, which has required a modification in the amount of right-of-way required for 
the undertaking. The revised quantities of right-of-way include 4.90 acres of new permanent right-of-way, 1.86 
acres of reacquisition right-of-way, and 0.09 acre of temporary right-of-way. 

See the attached aerial view map showing the aboveground and archaeological APEs and revised right-of-way, 
attached to this Note to File memo for reference. 

Historic Properties:

A historian who meets the Secretary of the Interior’s Professional Qualification Standards has examined the 
revised plans, and the additional revised right-of-way areas are still within the original APEs for the project. 
Therefore, no new properties need to be evaluated and the APEs do not require an expansion.  

An archaeologist who meets the Secretary of the Interior’s Professional Qualification Standards reviewed the 
areas where the ROW differed and found the revised right-of-way areas were covered by the initial Phase Ia 
survey.

The original finding of “No Historic Properties Affected” remains appropriate for this undertaking.

Attachments: 

Aerial Map - showing aboveground and archaeological APEs and revised right-of-way areas 
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Categorical Exclusion

Appendix F 
Water Resources 



Waters Report 
SR 56 at Boatman Road 

Intersection Improvement Project 
1.36 miles W of I-65 

Scott County, Indiana 
Des. No. 1800210 

Prepared By: 

Brenten Reust, PWS 
3502 Woodview Trace #150 

Indianapolis, IN 46268 
breust@lochgroup.com  

Ph: 317-222-3880 / Fax: 317-222-3881 

Prepared For: 
Indiana Department of Transportation 

Seymour District  
185 Agrico Lane 

Seymour, Indiana 47274 

February 26, 2020

APPROVED:  Stephen C. Sperry
Environmental Waterway Permitting Office 
Indiana Department of Transportation 

2:12 pm, 03/19/2020
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SR 56 at Boatman Road Intersection Improvement Project (Des. No. 1800210)
Scott County, Indiana 

Waters of the U.S. Determination 

Page 1 

Waters of the U.S. Determination 
SR 56 at Boatman Road  

Intersection Improvement Project 
Scott County, Indiana  

Des. No. 1800210 
 
Date(s) of Field Reconnaissance 
October 30, 2019 
 
Location 
The project is located along SR 56 at the Boatman Road intersection, approximately 1.36 miles west of I-
65 in Scottsburg, Indiana. (Pages A1 through A3). 

Sections 23 and 24, Township 3 North, Range 6 East 
Scottsburg 1:24,000 United States Geological Survey (USGS) Quadrangle 
Vienna Township, Scott County, Indiana 
Latitude: 38.68408 °N Longitude: -85.812842°W 
 

Project Description 
The project (Des. No. 1800210) involves the rehabilitation of SR 56 at Boatman Road intersection by con-
structing a roundabout with added turn lanes. 
 
One wetland (Wetland A), one stream (UNT to Big Ox Creek), and one roadside ditch (RSD 1) were identi-
fied within the survey area. The survey area is located west of the town of Scottsburg, IN with surrounding 
landscape consisting of residential neighborhoods, maintained grass, and agriculture row crop. The survey 
area is not located within a floodplain. 
 
Soils 
According to the Soil Survey Geographic (SSURGO) Database for Scott County, Indiana, the survey area 
contains soil areas with national hydric soils (Pages A4 through A6). 
 
Soil Name Map Abbreviation Hydric Range
Bartle silt loam BbhB Hydric (1-32%)
Dubois silt loam DfnB2, DfnA Not Hydric (1-32%)
Haubstadt silt loam HccA, HccB2 Not Hydric (0%) 
Pekin silt loam PcrC2, PcrB2 Not Hydric (0%) 
Peoga silt loam PhaA Hydric (66-99%)

National Wetlands Inventory Information 
There are no National Wetland Inventory (NWI) wetlands identified within the survey area (Page A7). The 
U.S. Fish and Wildlife NWI Mapper (https://www.fws.gov/wetlands/Data/Mapper.html) includes the fol-
lowing wetlands near the SR 56 at Boatman Road intersection improvement survey area. Wetland type is 
based on Classification of Wetlands and Deepwater Habitats of the United States (Cowardin et al. 1979). 
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SR 56 at Boatman Road Intersection Improvement Project (Des. No. 1800210)
Scott County, Indiana 

Waters of the U.S. Determination 

Page 2 

Wetland Type Description Location 

PUBGh
Palustrine, unconsolidated bottom, intermittently exposed, diked/im-
pounded

0.03 mile northwest

PUBGh 
Palustrine, unconsolidated bottom, intermittently exposed, diked/im-
pounded 

0.05 mile southwest 

R4SBC Riverine, intermittent, streambed, seasonally flooded 0.10 mile east

12-Digit HUC 
The SR 56 at Boatman Road intersection improvement project survey area is within the 051202070801 
(Big Ox Creek) and 051202070803 (Henry Creek-Cammie Thomas Ditch) 12-Digit HUCs. The USGS Stream-
Stats (https://water.usgs.gov/osw/streamtstats/) generated a watershed area of 0.05 square mile within
the survey area (Page A10). The Federal Emergency Management (FEMA) Flood Insurance Rate Map 
(FIRM) (https://msc.fema.gov/portal/home) data indicate that the survey area is not within a mapped 
floodplain (Pages A8 and A9). The survey area is not within an area with a 1% annual chance of flooding.

Attached Documents 
Project Location Map 
USGS Topographic Map (1:24,000) 
USGS Topographic Map (1:12,000) 
Scott County SSURGO Hydric Soils Map 
USFWS NWI Map  
Floodplain Map  
USGS StreamStats Watershed Map  
Water Resources Map 
Photo Location Map and Project Photos 
Wetland Determination Data Forms 
USACE Preliminary Jurisdictional Determination Form 

 
Field Reconnaissance 
The Waters of the U.S. (WOTUS) investigation survey area limits were established based on the scope of 
work expected for the SR 56 at Boatman Road intersection improvement project. Wetland determinations 
were conducted in accordance with the Corps of Engineers Wetland Delineation Manual (U.S. Army Corps 
of Engineers 1987) and the Regional Supplement to the Corps of Engineers Wetland Delineation Manual: 
Midwest Region Version 2.0 (U.S. Army Corps of Engineers 2010). Wetland Data sheets from the U.S. Army 
Corps of Engineers Detroit District website (https://www.lre.usace.army.mil/Missions/Regulatory-Pro-
gram-and-Permits/Automated-Wetland-Determination-Data-Form/) were used to make wetland deter-
minations. Due to discrepancies within the data sheets for soil indicator (S7) and red parent material (F21) 
between the Midwest Region Version 2.0 manual and the Detroit District, all methods remained con-
sistent with the Midwest Region Version 2.0 manual. One wetland, one stream, and one roadside ditch 
were identified during the field reconnaissance.  
 
Stream Feature(s) 
The USGS Scottsburg 1:24,000 topographic quadrangle did not identify blue-line stream features within 
the survey area for the SR 56 at Boatman Road intersection improvement project (Pages A2 and A3). The 
National Hydrography Dataset (NHD) GIS dataset did not include flow line features within the survey area 
(Page A11). 
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UNT to Big Ox Creek 
UNT to Big Ox Creek is an ephemeral stream that flows from south to northwest within the northwest 
quadrant of the survey area north of SR 56 (Page A11). Approximately 64 feet of the stream is within the 
survey area. The ordinary high water mark (OHWM) of UNT to Big Ox Creek is 1.9 feet wide and 0.3 feet 
deep. The drainage area is estimated to be 0.05 square mile. This reach of UNT to Big Ox Creek is domi-
nated by silt (80%) with sand (20%). This reach of UNT to Big Ox Creek is predominantly riffle (80%) with 
run (20%). UNT to Big Ox Creek is a natural channel formed from roadside drainage. The riparian area 
consists of mowed grass. Wetland A is adjacent and also contributing to the flow of UNT to Big Ox Creek. 
This stream reach is considered to exhibit poor quality based on riparian cover and available habitat.  
 
UNT to Big Ox Creek is considered to be a non-relatively permanent water (non-RPW) with a connection 
to Hosea Lake, Big Ox Creek, and ultimately the Muscatatuck River a traditional navigable water (TNW). 
UNT to Big Ox Creek provides a significant nexus to a (TNW) and is therefore subject to USACE jurisdiction 
under section 404 of the Clean Water Act. This stream is not subject to USACE jurisdiction under Section 
10 of the River and Harbors Act.  
 

Stream Summary Table 

Water Feature 
Name Photos Lat/Long 

OHW 
Width 

(ft)

OHW 
Depth 

(ft)

USGS 
Blue-line?

Type?

Riffles?
Pools? Quality  Substrate

Likely 
Waters 
of U.S.?

UNT to Big Ox
Creek 9-11 38.683457°N 

-85.814977°W 1.9 0.3 No Yes
No Poor silt

sand Yes 

Wetlands 
The October 30, 2019 field investigation identified one wetland feature within the SR 56 at Boatman Road 
intersection improvement project survey area. 
 
Wetland A 
This 0.006-acre forested wetland is situated along the north side of SR 56 and west of Boatman Road. It is 
located along the roadside conveying drainage to UNT to Big Ox Creek (Page A11). UNT to Big Ox Creek is 
connected to Hosea Lake and Big Ox Creek which connects to the Muscatatuck River. Therefore, Wetland 
A is subject to Clean Water Act jurisdiction due to a direct hydrologic connection with the Muscatatuck 
River, a (TNW). The Muscatatuck River is navigable from its junction with the East Fork of the White River 
for 24.25 river miles to the main forks. As defined by Cowardin et al. (1979), this wetland would be classi-
fied as palustrine, forested, broad-leaved deciduous, seasonally flooded/saturated (PFO1E). Wetland A 
has formed within a wooded area due to a local watershed and roadside drainage. Based on a qualitative 
assessment of Wetland A, this wetland is of average quality due to its size and forested vegetation. 
 
Data point AW1  
This data point represents wetland conditions within Wetland A, an area southwest of intersection SR 56 
at Boatman Road. There was no woody vine stratum identified within the plot area. The dominant species 
within the tree stratum consisted of green ash (Fraxinus pennsylvanica, FACW). The dominant species 
within the sapling/shrub stratum consisted of green ash (Fraxinus pennsylvanica, FACW). The dominant 
species within the herb stratum consisted of rice cut grass (Leersia oryzoides, OBL), lamp rush (Juncus 
effuses, OBL), and fowl manna grass (Glyceria striata, OBL). The plant community passes the rapid test for 
hydrophytic vegetation; therefore, hydrophytic vegetation is present and no further vegetation analysis 
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is required. There were no primary indicators of hydrology observed. Secondary indicators of hydrology 
included drainage patterns (B10), crayfish burrows (C8), and FAC-neutral test (D5). Therefore, wetland 
hydrology is present. The USDA NRCS Web Soil Survey indicates that this data point is within the Pekin silt 
loam unit. The Pekin series is not considered to be a hydric soil. The soil profile from a pit excavated to a 
depth of 16 inches consisted of a 10YR 3/1 (100%) loamy/clayey layer to a depth of 4 inches and a 10YR 
5/1 (85%) loamy/clayey layer with 10YR 5/6 (15%) redox features from 4 to 16 inches. The soil profile 
examined at this location meets the depleted below dark surface (A11) and depleted matrix (F3) indicator; 
therefore, hydric soil is present. This data point meets the requirements for hydrophytic vegetation, hy-
drology, and hydric soils; therefore, this data point is within a wetland. 
 
Data Point AU1 
This data point represents non-wetland conditions for Wetland A within an area southwest of intersection 
SR 56 at Boatman Road. There was no woody vine stratum identified within the plot area. The dominant 
species within the tree stratum consisted of white mulberry (Morus alba, FAC). The dominant species 
within the sapling/shrub stratum consisted of pin oak (Quercus palustris, FACW), black walnut (Juglans 
nigra, FACU), black cherry (Prunus serotina, FACU), and sweet-gum (Liquidambar styraciflua, FACW). The 
dominant species within the herb stratum consisted of red fescue (Festuca rubra, FACU) and Kentucky 
blue grass (Poa pratensis, FAC). Hydrophytic vegetation is present since 57 percent of the dominant spe-
cies are FAC or wetter. No primary or secondary indicators of wetland hydrology were observed; there-
fore, wetland hydrology is not present. The USDA NRCS Web Soil Survey indicates that this data point is 
within the Pekin silt loam unit. The Pekin series is not considered to be a hydric soil. The soil profile from 
a pit excavated to a depth of 12 inches consisted of a 10YR 4/1 (100%) loamy/clayey layer to a depth of 5 
inches and a 10YR 5/3 (85%) loamy clayey layer with 10YR 5/6 (15%) redox features from 5 to 12 inches. 
The soil profile examined at this location does not meet any hydric soil indicator; therefore, hydric soil is 
not present. Only one of the three required wetland criteria were present; therefore, this data point is 
not within a wetland. 
 

Data Point Summary Table 
SR 56 at Boatman Road in Scott County, Indiana 

Data Point Vegetation Soils Hydrology Wetland

AW1 Yes Yes Yes Yes 

AU1 Yes No No No 

Wetland Summary Table 
SR 56 at Boatman Road in Scott County, Indiana 

Wetland 
Name Photos Lat/Long Type Total Area 

(acres) Quality Likely Waters 
of U.S.?

Wetland A 11,13-14 38.683514°N
-85.814904°W  

PFO1E 0.006 Average Yes 

Open Water 
There are no open water features identified within the survey area. 
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Roadside Ditch 
Roadside Ditch 1 
Roadside Ditch 1 (RSD 1) is a riprap lined channel conveying agriculture drainage below Boatman Road. 
RSD 1 does not exhibit bed, bank, or OHWM (Page A11). Approximately 32 feet of this feature is within 
the survey area. This feature is not considered a jurisdictional feature.  
 
Conclusions 
The October 30, 2019 field review for the SR 56 at Boatman Road intersection improvement project iden-
tified one wetland feature (Wetland A), one stream feature (UNT to Big Ox Creek), and one roadside ditch 
feature (RSD 1) within the survey area. Wetland A conveys drainage to Big Ox Creek which connects to 
the Muscatatuck River, a TNW. Wetland A would be classified as palustrine, forested, broad-leaved decid-
uous, seasonally flooded/saturated (PFO1E). UNT to Big Ox Creek connects with Hosea Lake which con-
nects to Big Ox Creek and ultimately the Muscatatuck River, a TNW. The U.S. Army Corps of Engineers 
Jurisdictional Determination Form Instructional Guidebook (U.S. Army Corps of Engineers 2007) states 
“TNWs; all wetlands adjacent to TNWs; non-navigable tributaries of TNWs that are relatively permanent 
and wetlands that directly abut such tributaries” are subject to Clean Water Act (CWA) jurisdiction only if 
a significant nexus is demonstrated. The agency will also assert jurisdiction over every water body that is 
not an RPW if that water body is determined to have a significant nexus with a TNW. Therefore, Wetland 
A and UNT to Big Ox Creek have a significant nexus with a TNW and are considered jurisdictional features. 
RSD 1 would not be considered a jurisdictional feature. 
 
Wetland A and UNT to Big Ox Creek are likely Waters of the U.S. Every effort should be taken to avoid and 
minimize impacts to stream and wetland features. If impacts are necessary, then mitigation may be re-
quired. The INDOT Environmental Services Division should be contacted immediately if impacts will occur. 
The final determination of jurisdictional waters is ultimately made by the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers. 
This report is our best judgment based on the guidelines set forth by the Corps. 
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